Council

Tuesday, 17 September 2013

Present: Councillor John Walker (Mayor), Councillor Roy Lees (Deputy Mayor) and Councillors Ken Ball, Eric Bell, Julia Berry, Alistair Bradley, Terry Brown, Henry Caunce, Jean Cronshaw, Matthew Crow, Magda Cullens, John Dalton, David Dickinson, Doreen Dickinson, Graham Dunn, Dennis Edgerley, Robert Finnamore, Christopher France, Anthony Gee, Danny Gee, Peter Goldsworthy, Marie Gray, Alison Hansford, Harold Heaton, Steve Holgate, Keith Iddon, Kevin Joyce, Hasina Khan, Paul Leadbetter, Adrian Lowe, Marion Lowe, June Molyneaux, Greg Morgan, Mick Muncaster, Steve Murfitt, Beverley Murray, Mark Perks, Alan Platt, Pauline Phipps, Dave Rogerson, Geoffrey Russell, Rosie Russell, Joyce Snape, Kim Snape, Ralph Snape, Paul Walmsley and Peter Wilson

Also in attendance

Officers: Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Lesley-Ann Fenton (Director of Partnerships, Planning and Policy), Jamie Carson (Director of People and Places), Chris Moister (Head of Governance) and Carol Russell (Democratic Services Manager)

13.C.68 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest received.

13.C.69 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 16 JULY 2013

RESOLVED – that the minutes of the last Council meeting held on 16 July 2013 be approved and signed as a correct record, subject to an amendment regarding the attendance of the Mayor and Deputy Mayor.

13.C.70 MAYORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Mayor referred to the recent death of former Councillor Ted Smith who represented the Chisnall ward until 2011. Members of the Council stood in silence in memory of the former Councillor.

The Mayor also referred to the recent confirmation of the local election date in 2014 as 22 May, the same date as the European Parliamentary Elections. This would mean some changes to the meetings calendar and Members were advised that Annual Council would be held on 3 June, Civic Dinner would take place on 6 June, Civic Sunday on 8 June and the Development Control Committee currently scheduled for 20 May would be brought forward to 13 May 2013.

The Mayor reminded Councillors of the arrangements for Remembrance Sunday on 10 November and also updated on his fundraising activities.

13.C.71 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were no public questions to be considered.

13.C.72 EXECUTIVE CABINET

Members considered a general report of two meetings of the Executive Cabinet held on 15 August and 12 September 2013.

In relation to performance monitoring, Councillor Edgerley, Executive Member for LDF and Planning, highlighted that the introduction of the new Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) regime had impacted significantly on the performance of processing planning applications within target timescales. The planning team were working to try and get performance back on track.

The Executive Leader, Councillor Alistair Bradley proposed, the Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance, Councillor Peter Wilson seconded, and it was **RESOLVED – that the report be noted.**

13.C.73 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14

Members considered a report of the Chief Executive on the provisional revenue outturn figures for the Council as compared against the budget and efficiency savings set for the financial year 2013/14. The report had been considered by Executive Cabinet on 15 August 2013.

Members questioned how far initiatives undertaken by the Council as part of the investment in local economic development could be seen as part of the improving picture of economic growth in the area plus queries about the delay in the redevelopment of the former McDonalds site.

In response, Councillor Wilson reported that the package of measures to support economic development had not all been implemented as yet but collectively they would assist in sustained growth in the local employment situation. The delay in the McDonalds site development was due to more extensive site investigation works. At the current time, over 15 people had expressed interest in occupying the units.

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance, Councillor Peter Wilson proposed and the Executive Leader, Councillor Alistair Bradley seconded, and it was **RESOLVED** –

- 1. That the use of £143,000 of the Town Centre Reserve for revenue financing of the capital scheme for resurfacing of three Town Centre car parks be approved;
- 2. That the use of the £40,000 one-off Minimum Revenue Provision saving, relating to Regeneration Projects in the 2013/14 Capital Programme be approved, to finance revenue costs relating to the projects including the cost of business rates for 98-102 Market Street outlined in paragraph 21 of the report; and
- 3. That the use of the one-off £35,950 Minimum Revenue Provision saving, arising from the rephasing of capital expenditure from 2012/13 be approved, for the reduction of debt as detailed in paragraph 28 of the report.

13.C.74 CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING 2013-14 TO 2015-16

Members considered a report of the Chief Executive updating the capital programme for 2013/14 and provisional budgets for 2014/15 and 2015/16, to take account of additional resources and other proposed budget changes. The report also provided an updated analysis of the receipt and use of developer contributions for the financing of capital projects between 2013/14 and 2015/16.

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance, Councillor Peter Wilson proposed and the Executive Leader, Councillor Alistair Bradley seconded, and it was **RESOLVED** –

- 1. That the amendments to the Capital Programme for 2013/14, as presented in column (2) of Appendix 1of the report be approved; and
- 2. That the amendments to the provisional budgets for 2014/15 and 2015/16, as presented in columns (5) and (8) of Appendix 1 of the report be approved.

13.C.75 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Members considered a general report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Performance Panel and Task Group meetings held during July, August and September.

Councillor Steve Holgate, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee proposed, Councillor Mark Perks, Vice Chair seconded, and it was **RESOLVED – that the report be noted.**

13.C.76 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Members considered a general report of the meeting of Governance Committee held on 12 September 2013.

Councillor Paul Leadbetter, Chair of Governance Committee proposed, Councillor Alison Hansford, Vice Chair seconded, and it was **RESOLVED – that the report be noted.**

13.C.77 PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE MEMBERS ALLOWANCES SCHEME

On behalf of the Independent Remuneration Panel, the Chief Executive submitted a report detailing the Panel's recommendations for changes to the Members Allowance Scheme and consequential changes to the Constitution.

The Executive Leader presented the report which made recommendations in respect of the remuneration for the position of Vice Chair of the Governance Committee and also changes to the travel scheme, including the introduction of the use of an electronic system for Member travel claims.

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance, Councillor Peter Wilson proposed and the Executive Leader, Councillor Alistair Bradley seconded, and it was **RESOLVED** –

That the following changes to the Members' Allowances Scheme be approved and the Scheme be revised in the Constitution accordingly:

- 4. An allowance be payable to the Vice-Chair of Governance Committee of £50 (per half day), applicable only when chairing the meeting due to the absence of the Chair.
- 5. That Members start using the electronic claim system (rather than the paper based system) in line with staff as soon as practicable but not later than 1 November 2013 and in doing so, the scheme be revised to include a provision for the shortest journey route to be claimed; and
- 6. That the approved duties list be revised so that Members may claim travel for those meetings where they are appointed as a formal member; where they are attending as a nominated substitute member; or are attending Executive Cabinet. All other meetings, whether acting as an observer or speaking as a ward Councillor, to be outside the scheme and therefore not eligible for travel expenses.

13.C.78 OPEN SPACE AND PLAYING PITCH SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE

The Director of Partnerships, Planning and Policy submitted a report seeking approval to the adoption of the Open Space and Playing Pitch Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) as part of the Core Strategy. SPDs allow local planning authorities the opportunity to add guidance in specific policy areas. The document had been subject to consultation and had been revised to take account of comments received.

Members commented on the increasing trend at Development Control Committee for developers to quote viability as a reason for not undertaking development. Councillor Dennis Edgerley, Executive Member for LDF and Planning agreed this was an issue and that the Council would monitor the frequency with which developers use the viability argument.

Councillor Dennis Edgerley, Executive Member for LDF and Planning proposed, Councillor Paul Walmsley, Chair of the Development Control Committee seconded, and it was RESOLVED – that the Open Space and Playing Pitch Supplementary Planning Document be approved for adoption as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report.

13.C.79 QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 8

There were no questions received under Procedure Rule 8.

13.C.80 TO CONSIDER THE NOTICES OF MOTION GIVEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10

There were no notices of motions received under Procedure Rule 10.

13.C.81 ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THE MAYOR DECIDES IS/ARE URGENT

The Mayor informed Members that he had accepted the following two urgent items of business on the basis that their consideration could not be postponed until the next scheduled meeting of the Council.

- Landsbanki: Proposal to Factor Debt
- Market Walk

The Mayor then proposed an adjournment to allow Members to fully consider the reports which had been circulated at the meeting and for which the press and public were likely to be excluded.

At this point the meeting was adjourned and later reconvened.

13.C.82 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED – that the press and public be excluded for the remaining two items of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of part 1 of schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

13.C.83 LANDSBANKI - PROPOSAL TO FACTOR DEBT

Members considered a joint report of the Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer on a proposal from the Local Government Association in relation to the Landsbanki debt with Chorley Council.

The Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance, Councillor Peter Wilson proposed and the Executive Leader, Councillor Alistair Bradley seconded, and it was **RESOLVED** – that the recommendations contained in the report be approved.

13.C.84 MARKET WALK

Members considered a joint report of the Chief Executive and Executive Leader on the potential for the Council to purchase the Market Walk site which was up for sale by its current owners. The report recommended that a Steering Committee of Councillors be established to investigate the options.

The Executive Leader, Councillor Alistair Bradley proposed, the Executive Member for Resources, Policy and Performance, Councillor Peter Wilson seconded, and it was **RESOLVED** –

- 1. That approval be given to the Council engaging in an exclusivity agreement with the owners of Market Walk in order to investigate the possibility of purchasing the site following a period of due diligence and further investigation;
- 2. That approval be given to the establishment of an all Party Steering Committee to undertake the investigation and due diligence comprising 5 members of the Council (3 from the administration and 2 from the opposition parties);

3.	That approval be given to the incurring of expenditure of up to £50k
	to complete the due diligence and investigation works detailed in
	the report: and

4. That any recommendations from the Steering Committee be brought back to Council for a final decision.

Chair